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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements. These statements may be identified by such forward-looking terminology as “may,”

“should,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparable
terminology. Our forward-looking statements are based on a series of expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections about our company, are not guarantees of future
results or performance and involve substantial risks and uncertainty. We may not actually achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in these forward-looking
statements. Actual results or events could differ materially from the plans, intentions and expectations disclosed in these forward-looking statements. Our business and our
forward-looking statements involve substantial known and unknown risks and uncertainties, including the risks and uncertainties inherent in our statements regarding:

 
 ● our artificial intelligence (AI)-driven learning platform’s ability to enable businesses, universities and K-12 schools to offer timely, improved popular courses and

certification programs, without becoming software tech companies;
 
 ● our planned online machine learning platform’s ability to result in opportunistic incremental revenue for colleges and universities, and improved ability to garner state

funds due to increased retention and graduation rates through use of machine learning and natural language processing;
 
 ● our ability to obtain additional funds for our operations;
 
 ● our ability to obtain and maintain intellectual property protection for our technologies and our ability to operate our business without infringing the intellectual property

rights of others;
 
 ● our reliance on third parties to conduct our business and studies;
 
 ● our reliance on third party designers, suppliers, and partners to provide and maintain our learning platform;
 
 ● our ability to attract and retain qualified key management and technical personnel;
 
 ● our expectations regarding the time during which we will be an emerging growth company under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, or JOBS Act;
 
 ● our financial performance;
 
 ● the impact of government regulation and developments relating to our competitors or our industry; and
  

All of our forward-looking statements are as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q only. In each case, actual results may differ materially from such
forward-looking information. We can give no assurance that such expectations or forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. An occurrence of, or any material adverse
change in, one or more of the risk factors or risks and uncertainties referred to in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or included in our other public disclosures or our other
periodic reports or other documents or filings filed with or furnished to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) could materially and adversely affect our
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. Except as required by law, we do not undertake or plan to update or revise any such forward-looking
statements to reflect actual results, changes in plans, assumptions, estimates or projections or other circumstances affecting such forward-looking statements occurring after the
date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, even if such results, changes or circumstances make it clear that any forward-looking information will not be realized. Any public
statements or disclosures by us following this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that modify or impact any of the forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q will be deemed to modify or supersede such statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

 
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may include market data and certain industry data and forecasts, which we may obtain from internal company surveys, market

research, consultant surveys, publicly available information, reports of governmental agencies and industry publications, articles and surveys. Industry surveys, publications,
consultant surveys and forecasts generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but the accuracy and completeness
of such information is not guaranteed. While we believe that such studies and publications are reliable, we have not independently verified market and industry data from third-
party sources.
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 Amesite Inc.

Condensed Balance Sheets (unaudited)
 

  
September 30, 

2020   
June 30,

2020  
Assets       

Current Assets         
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 16,355,165  $ 4,093,874 
Accounts receivable   276,750   61,120 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   145,569   227,274 

Property and Equipment - Net   61,667   45,308 
Capitalized Software - Net   1,321,813   1,277,097 

Total assets  $ 18,160,964  $ 5,704,673 

         
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity         

         
Current Liabilities         

Accounts payable  $ 385,999  $ 112,053 
Notes payable (Note 6)   -   2,025,600 
Accrued and other current liabilities:         

Accrued compensation   313,311   62,485 
Deferred revenue   842,021   380,000 
Other accrued liabilities   57,997   124,639 

Total current liabilities   1,599,328   2,704,777 
Stockholders’ Equity:         

Common stock, $.0001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 20,359,692 and 16,231,820 shares issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2020 and June 30, 2020, respectively   1,996   1,583 

Preferred stock, $.0001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2020 or June 30,
2020   -   - 

Additional paid-in capital   30,276,705   11,629,114 
Accumulated deficit   (13,717,065)   (8,630,801)

Total stockholders’ equity   16,561,636   2,999,896 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 18,160,964  $ 5,704,673 

 
See notes to condensed financial statements.
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 Amesite Inc.

Condensed Statements of Operations (unaudited)
 

  

Three months
ended

September 30,
2020   

Three months
ended

September 30,
2019  

Net Revenue  $ 110,109  $ 7,700 
Operating Expenses         

General and administrative expenses   862,908   526,389 
Technology and content development   467,763   261,686 
Sales and marketing   251,884   175,089 

Total operating expenses   1,582,555   963,164 
Other Income (Expense)         

Interest income   13   2,447 
Interest expense (Note 6)   (3,613,831)   (80)

Total other income (expense)   (3,613,818)   2,367 
Net Loss  $ (5,086,264)  $ (953,097)

Loss per Share         
Basic loss per share  $ (.31)  $ (.07)
Weighted average shares outstanding   16,545,897   13,611,997 

 
See notes to condensed financial statements.
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 Amesite Inc.

Condensed Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (unaudited)
 

  Common Stock   
Additional Paid-

In Capital   
Accumulated

Deficit   Total  
Balance - July 1, 2019  $ 1,309  $ 6,304,118  $ (4,460,498)  $ 1,844,929 
Net loss   -   -   (953,097)   (953,097)
Issuance of common stock – net   124   2,093,555   -   2,093,679 
Stock compensation expense   -   179,870   -   179,870 
Balance - September 30, 2019  $ 1,433  $ 8,577,543  $ (5,413,595)  $ 3,165,381 

 

  Common Stock   
Additional Paid-

In Capital   
Accumulated

Deficit   Total  
Balance - July 1, 2020   1,583   11,629,114   (8,630,801)   2,999,896 
Net loss   -   -   (5,086,264)   (5,086,264)
Issuance of common stock – net   300   12,795,930   -   12,796,230 
Stock compensation expense   -   212,413   -   212,413 
Conversion of notes payable (Note 6)   113   5,639,248   -   5,639,361 
Balance - September 30, 2020  $ 1,996  $ 30,276,705  $ (13,717,065)  $ 16,561,636 

 
See notes to condensed financial statements.
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 Amesite Inc.

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)
 

  

Three months
ended

September 30,
2020   

Three months
ended

September 30,
2019  

Cash Flows from Operating Activities       
Net loss  $ (5,086,264)  $ (953,097)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities:         

Depreciation and amortization   160,974   101,248 
Stock compensation expense   212,413   179,870 
Amortization of debt costs   182,900   - 
Interest expense on notes payable converted to common stock   3,430,931   - 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities which (used) provided cash:         

Accounts receivable   (210,630)   - 
Prepaid expenses and other assets   76,705   5,295 
Accounts payable   273,946   (69,565)
Accrued compensation   250,826   (22,183)
Accrued and other liabilities   (66,712)   (13,557)
Deferred revenue   462,061   - 

Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities   (312,890)   (771,989)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities         

Purchase of property and equipment   (19,343)   (3,478)
Investment in capitalized software   (202,706)   (249,360)

Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities   (222,049)   (252,838)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities – Issuance of common stock – net   12,796,230   2,093,679 
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents   12,261,291   1,068,852 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of period   4,093,874   1,008,902 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of period  $ 16,355,165  $ 2,077,754 

Significant Noncash Transactions:
        

Acquisition of capitalized software included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 152,535  $ 53,625 
Conversion of convertible notes payable, including accrued interest of $73,315, into $113 of common stock  $ 2,255,745  $ - 

  
See notes to condensed financial statements.
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 Amesite Inc.

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
 

September 30, 2020 and 2019
 

Note 1 - Nature of Business
 

Amesite Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in November 2017. The Company is an artificial intelligence driven platform and course designer, that provides
customized, high performance and scalable online products for schools and businesses. The Company uses machine learning to provide a novel, mass customized
experience to learners. The Company’s customers are businesses, universities and colleges, and K-12 schools. The Company’s activities are subject to significant risks
and uncertainties. The Company’s operations are considered to be in one segment.
 
On September 18, 2020, we consummated a reorganizational merger (the “Reorganization”), pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”),
dated July 14, 2020, whereby Amesite Inc. (“Amesite Parent”), our former parent corporation, merged with and into us, with our Company resulting as the surviving
entity. In connection with the same, we filed a Certificate of Ownership and Merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, and changed our name from
“Amesite Operating Company” to “Amesite Inc.” The stockholders of Amesite Parent approved the Merger Agreement on August 4, 2020. The directors and officers of
Amesite Parent became our directors and officers.
 
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on the Effective Date, each share of Amesite Parent’s common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, issued and outstanding
immediately before the Effective Date, was converted, on a one-for-one basis, into shares of our common stock.
 
Additionally, each option or warrant to acquire shares of Amesite Parent outstanding immediately before the Effective Date was converted into and became an equivalent
option to acquire shares of our common stock, upon the same terms and conditions.
 
As discussed in Note 5, the Company completed an initial public offering on September 29, 2020, through which it raised approximately $12.8 million in net proceeds.
These funds will be utilized to execute the Company’s strategic growth plans, including hiring additional sales staff as well as product engineers. These funds provide
sufficient operating capital for the Company. As such, we have concluded there are no current conditions or events present that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

 
Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

 
Basis of Presentation
 
The condensed financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) and considering the requirements of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The Company has a fiscal year with a June 30 year end.
 
In the opinion of management, the financial statements of the Company as of September 30, 2020 and June 30, 2020 and for the three months ended September 30, 2020
and 2019 include all adjustments and accruals, consisting only of normal, recurring accrual adjustments, which are necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the
interim periods. These interim results are not necessarily indicative of results for a full year.
 
Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed in or omitted from this
report pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC. These financial statements should be read together with the financial statements and notes thereto included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2020.
 
Certain operating expenses within the statement of operations from the prior year have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of condensed financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
Fair Value Measurements
 
Accounting standards require certain assets and liabilities be reported at fair value in the financial statements and provide a framework for establishing that fair value.
The framework for determining fair value is based on a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
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Amesite Inc.

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
 

September 30, 2020 and 2019
 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
 
Fair values determined by Level 1 inputs use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access.
 
Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs use other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly. These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets
and liabilities in active markets and other inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.
 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, including inputs that are available in situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the related asset. These Level 3 fair
value measurements are based primarily on management’s own estimates using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques.
 
In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation. The Company’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements
requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability.
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
The Company considers all investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The total amount of bank deposits
(checking, savings, and investment accounts) that was insured by the FDIC at September 30, 2020 was $500,000.
 
Property and Equipment
 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. The straight-line method is used for computing depreciation and amortization. Assets are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. The cost of leasehold improvements is depreciated (amortized) over the lesser of the length of the related leases or the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred.
 

  Depreciable Life - Years
   

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of estimated lease term or 10 years
Furniture and fixtures  7 years
Computer equipment and software  5 years

 
Capitalized Software Costs
 
The Company capitalizes significant costs incurred in the development of software for internal use, including the costs of the software, materials, consultants, and payroll
and payroll related costs for employees incurred in developing internal use computer software. Planning costs incurred prior to the development of software and costs not
qualifying for capitalization are charged to expense. The Company amortizes capitalized software over a period of three years, which is the expected useful life of the
software. The Company recognized amortization expense of approximately $158,000 and $91,000 for the three month periods ended September 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively and is included in Technology and Content Development in the Condensed Statements of Operations. Accumulated amortization at September 30, 2020 and
2019 was $762,416 and $213,352, respectively.
 
Revenue Recognition  
 
We generate substantially all of our revenue from contractual arrangements with our businesses, colleges and universities and K-12 schools to provide a comprehensive
platform of tightly integrated technology and technology enabled services related to product offerings.
 
Performance Obligations and Timing of Recognition
 
A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer. A contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct
performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied.
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Amesite Inc.

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
 

September 30, 2020 and 2019
 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
 

We derive revenue from annual licensing arrangements, including maintenance fees, setup fees and other variable fees for course development and miscellaneous items.
Our contracts with partners generally have two to five-year terms and have a single performance obligation. The promises to set up and provide a hosted platform of
tightly integrated technology and services partners need to attract, enroll, educate and support students are not distinct within the context of the contracts. This
performance obligation is satisfied as the partners receive and consume benefits, which occurs ratably over the contract term.
 
We do not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations because the variable consideration is allocated entirely to a wholly unsatisfied promise to transfer a
service that forms part of a single performance obligation (i.e., consideration received is based on the level of product offerings, which is unknown in advance).
 
We also receive fees that are fixed in nature, such as annual license and maintenance charges, in place of or in conjunction with variable consideration. The fees are
independent of the number of students that are enrolled in courses with our customers and are allocated to and recognized ratably over the service period of the contract
that the Company’s platform is made available to the customer (i.e. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit of the software over the contract
service period).
 
The following factors affect the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of our revenue and cash flows:
 

● The majority of our customers are private and public learning institutions across various domestic regions
 
 ● The majority of our customers have annual payment terms
   

The following table shows revenue from contracts with customers by customer type for the three months ended September 30:
  

Customer Type  2020   2019  
       
Enterprise  $ 107,609  $ - 
K12   2,500   - 
University   -   7,700 
Total  $ 110,109  $ 7,700 

 
Contract Fulfilment Costs
 
We incur certain fulfilment costs related to software design of specific course offerings for our customers, primarily comprised of software development, configuration
costs, and implementation costs. These costs are capitalized and recorded on a contract-by-contract basis and amortized using the straight-line method over the length of
the contract (i.e. on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates). There were no costs to fulfill
capitalized or amortized as of September 30, 2020 or 2019.
 
Accounts Receivable, Contract Assets and Liabilities
 
Balance sheet items related to contracts consist of accounts receivable (net) and contract liabilities on our condensed balance sheets. Accounts receivable (net) is stated
at net realizable value, and we utilize the allowance method to provide for doubtful accounts based on management’s evaluation of the collectability of the amounts due.
Our estimates are reviewed and revised periodically based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of accounts receivable. Historically,
actual write-offs for uncollectible accounts have not significantly differed from prior estimates. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts on accounts receivable
balances as of September 30, 2020 and 2019.
 
We may recognize revenue prior to billing a customer when we have satisfied or partially satisfied our performance obligations as billings to our customers may not be
made until after the service period has commenced. As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, we do not have any contract assets.
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Amesite Inc.

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
 

September 30, 2020 and 2019
 
Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
 

Contract liabilities as of each balance sheet date represent the excess of amounts billed or received as compared to amounts recognized in revenue on our condensed
statements of operations as of the end of the reporting period, and such amounts are reflected as a current liability on our condensed balance sheets as deferred revenue.
We generally receive payments prior to completion of the service period and our performance obligations. These payments are recorded as deferred revenue until the
services are delivered or until our obligations are otherwise met, at which time revenue is recognized.
 
Some contracts also involve annual license fees, for which upfront amounts are received from customers. In these contracts, the license fees received in advance of the
platform’s launch are recorded as contract liabilities.
 
The following table reflects that there was no deferred revenue at July 1, 2019 or September 30, 2019 and provides information on the changes in the balance of contract
liabilities for the three months ended September 30.
 

  2020   2019  
       
Opening balance  $ 380,000  $        - 
Billings   572,130   - 
Less revenue recognized from continuing operations (net of returns and allowances):   (110,109)   - 
Closing balance  $ 842,021  $ - 

 
Technology and Content Development
 
Technology and content development expenditures consist primarily of personnel and personnel-related expense and contracted services associated with the maintenance
of our platform as well as hosting and licensing costs and are charged to expense as incurred. It also includes amortization of capitalized software costs and research and
development costs related to improving our platform and creating content that are charged to expense as incurred.
 
Stock-Based Payments
 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718 “Compensation-Stock Compensation” requires companies to
measure the cost of employee and nonemployee services received in exchange for the award of equity instruments based on the estimated fair value of the award at the
date of grant. The expense is to be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide services in exchange for the award. The Company
accounts for shares of common stock, stock options and warrants issued to employees and nonemployees based on the fair value of the stock, stock option or warrant.
 
Income Taxes
 
In calculating the provision for interim income taxes, in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Income Taxes, we apply an estimated annual
effective tax rate to year-to-date ordinary income. At the end of each interim period, we estimate the effective tax rate expected to be applicable for the full fiscal year.
 
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent management concludes it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realized. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the condensed statement of operations in the period that
includes the enactment date.
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Amesite Inc.

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
 

September 30, 2020 and 2019
 
Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
 

Net Loss per Share
 
Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted loss per share includes potentially dilutive securities such as outstanding options and warrants, using various methods such as the treasury stock or
modified treasury stock method in the determination of dilutive shares outstanding during each reporting period. For the three months ended September 30, 2020, the
Company had 3,013,833 and 2,068,783 potentially dilutive shares of common stock related to common stock options and warrants, respectively, as determined using the
if-converted method. For the three months ended September 30, 2019, the Company had 1,170,833 and 1,771,192 potentially dilutive shares of common stock related to
common stock options and warrants, respectively, as determined using the if-converted method. For all periods presented, the dilutive effect of common stock options
and common stock warrants has not been included in the average shares outstanding for the calculation of net loss per share as the effect would be anti-dilutive as a
result of our net losses in these periods.
 
Risks and Uncertainties
 
The Company operates in an industry subject to rapid change. The Company’s operations will be subject to significant risk and uncertainties including financial,
operational, technological, and other risks associated with an early stage company, including the potential risk of business failure.
 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus as a “pandemic.” First identified in late
2019 and known now as COVID-19, the outbreak has impacted thousands of individuals worldwide. In response, many countries, including the United States, have
implemented measures to combat the outbreak which have impacted global business operations. While management believes the Company’s operations have not been
significantly impacted, the Company continues to monitor the situation. In addition, while the Company’s results of operations, cash flows and financial condition could
be negatively impacted, the extent of the impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
 

Note 3 - Stock-Based Compensation
 
The Company’s Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) permits the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, or restricted stock units to officers,
employees, directors, consultants, agents, and independent contractors of the Company. The Company believes that such awards better align the interests of its
employees, directors, and consultants with those of its stockholders. Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the
Company’s stock at the date of grant; those option awards generally vest over two years from the grant date and generally have ten-year contractual terms. Certain
option awards provide for accelerated vesting (as defined in the Plan).
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Amesite Inc.

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
 

September 30, 2020 and 2019
 
Note 3 - Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)
 

The Company has reserved 4,600,000 shares of common stock to be available for grants under the Plan.
 
The Company estimates the fair value of each option award using a Black-Scholes Model (“BSM”) that uses the weighted-average assumptions included in the table
below. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of comparable companies. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise within the
valuation model or estimates the expected option exercise when historical data is unavailable. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The Company has not paid any dividends on common stock since its inception and does not
anticipate paying dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable future. When calculating the amount of annual compensation expense, the Company has elected not
to estimate forfeitures and instead accounts for forfeitures as they occur.
 
The following table summarizes the assumptions used for estimating the fair value of the stock options granted for the three-month periods presented:
 

  
September 30,

2020   
September 30,

2019  
       
Expected term (years)   6.00   6.00 
Risk-free interest rate   0.14%  2.13%
Expected volatility   45.00%  45.00%
Dividend yield   0%  0%

 
A summary of option activity for the three months ended September 30, 2020 is presented below:
 

Options  
Number of

Shares   

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term 
(in years)  

          
Outstanding at July 1, 2020   2,962,833  $ 1.82   9.06 
Granted   65,000   2.00   9.78 
Terminated   (14,000)   2.00   - 
Outstanding at September 30, 2020   3,013,833   1.82   8.83 

 
The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the three month period ended September 30, 2020 was $0.84. The options contained time-based
vesting conditions satisfied over periods ranging from two to five years from the grant date.
 
The Company recognized $212,413 and $179,870 in expense related to the Plan for the three month periods ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The 2019
expense includes $61,250 for consulting services settled in restricted shares for the three month period ended September 30, 2019. There was no such expense in the
three month period ended September 30, 2020.
 
As of September 30, 2020, there was approximately $1,339,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost for employees and non-employees related to nonvested options.
That cost is expected to be recognized through April 2025.
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Amesite Inc.

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
 

September 30, 2020 and 2019
 
Note 4 - Income Taxes

 
For the three months ended September 30, 2020 and prior periods since inception, the Company’s activities have not generated any taxable income or tax liabilities.
Accordingly, the Company has not recognized an income tax benefit for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2020 and 2019.
 
The Company has approximately $11,808,000 of net operating loss carryforwards available to reduce future income taxes, of which approximately $17,000 of net
operating loss carryforwards expire in 2037. Due to uncertainty as to the realization of the net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax assets as a result of the
Company’s limited operating history and operating losses since inception, a full valuation allowance has been recorded against the Company’s deferred tax assets.

 
Note 5 - Common Stock
 

On September 29, 2020, the Company completed an initial public offering (the “Offering”) of 3,000,000 shares of its common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, at an
offering price of $5.00 per share (total net proceeds of approximately $12.8 million after underwriting discounts, commissions, and other offering costs). In connection
with the Offering, the Company issued warrants to the underwriter to purchase up to 150,000 shares of our common stock (five percent (5%) of the common shares sold
in the Offering) with an exercise price equal to $6.00 per share and a term of five (5) years.

 
The Company measures the warrants using the Black-Scholes Model (“BSM”) to estimate their fair value. The fair value of the warrants issued in connection with the
Offering was approximately $249,000 based on the following inputs and assumptions using the BSM: (i) expected stock price volatility of 45.00%; (ii) risk-free interest
rate of .14%; and (iii) expected life of the warrants of 5 years. The warrants are included in offering costs in the Statement of Stockholders’ Equity.
 
In connection with the Offering, the Company converted its outstanding convertible notes payable into 1,127,872 shares of its common stock (Note 6).
 
Additionally, in connection with the Offering, the Company cancelled 126,532 warrants previously issued to nonemployees in exchange for professional services to meet
certain offering listing requirements, of which 6,665 were replaced and deemed vested in full. As a result, the Company recorded approximately $15,000 of additional
warrant expense, which was recorded as additional paid-in-capital.

 
Note 6 - Convertible Notes Payable

 
In April and May 2020, the Company issued unsecured, convertible notes payable (the “Notes”) to certain accredited investors, with an aggregate principal amount of
$2,182,500, in an offering intended to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) thereof and Regulation D
thereunder.
 
The Notes were unsecured, bore interest at 8% per annum, and matured one year from their dates of issuance. The Notes were subject to automatic conversion into the
Company’s common stock upon a qualified equity financing or change of control, based on a specified formula for the conversion price; using the lesser of $2.00 or 75%
of the price paid per share in either of the conversion events.

 
The Company incurred issuance costs of $261,900. The issuance costs were amortized over six months, which was the estimated length of time that the Company
believed the Notes would be outstanding until a conversion event occurred.

 
In connection with the Offering (Note 5), the Notes (totaling $2,255,815, including accrued interest) were converted into 1,127,872 shares of common stock at $2.00 per
share. As the Offering price was $5.00 per share, the Company recognized an expense totaling $3,383,546 which represents the discount provided to the Note holders.
This expense is recorded within interest expense in the condensed statement of operations. Additionally, upon completion of the Offering, the remaining unamortized
debt issuance costs of $182,900 were fully amortized and included within interest expense.
 

Note 7 – Subsequent Events
 

On October 19, 2020 the Company entered into separate agreements with two consulting firms whereby such firms will provide strategic investor relations services. In
connection with the agreements, the Company has agreed to compensate the two firms via monthly payments of cash as well as the issuance of its common stock
(36,000 and 24,000 shares, respectively). The agreements expire on March 4, 2021.
 
On November 5, 2020 the Company entered into an agreement with a consulting firm whereby such firm will provide a strategic platform for investor relations services.
In connection with the agreement, the Company has agreed to compensate the firm via a monthly payment of cash as well as the issuance of 9,709 shares of its common
stock. The agreement expires on November 5, 2021.
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 Item 2. Management’s Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition And Results Of Operations.

 
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read together with our unaudited financial statements and related notes
appearing elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our audited financial statements and related notes for the year ended June 30, 2020 included in our final
prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, pursuant to Rule 424(b) of the Securities Act, dated September 24, 2020, which we refer to as the
Prospectus. In addition to historical information, this discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors. We discuss factors that we believe could cause or
contribute to these differences below and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including those factors set forth in the section entitled “Cautionary Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements and Industry Data” and in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in Part II, Item 1A.
 
Overview

 
We were incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 14, 2017. We are an artificial intelligence driven platform and course designer that rapidly provides customized,
high performance and scalable online products for schools and businesses. We use machine learning to provide a novel, mass customized experience to learners. Our customers
are businesses, universities and colleges and K-12 schools. We are passionate about improving the learner experience and learner outcomes in online learning products, and
improving our customers’ ability to create and deliver both. We are focused on creating the best possible technology solutions and have been awarded an innovation award for
our product. We are committed to our team, and have twice been recognized with workplace excellence awards. 
  
Our activities are subject to significant risks and uncertainties, including failure to secure additional funding to execute the current business plan.
 
The following discussion highlights our results of operations and the principal factors that have affected our financial condition as well as our liquidity and capital resources for
the three months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 and provides information that management believes is relevant for an assessment and understanding of the statements of
financial condition and results of operations presented herein. The following discussion and analysis are based on our unaudited financial statements contained in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q, which we have prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. You should read the discussion and
analysis together with such financial statements and the related notes thereto.
 
Reorganization
 
On September 18, 2020, we consummated a reorganizational merger (the “Reorganization”), pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”), dated
July 14, 2020, whereby Amesite Inc. (“Amesite Parent”), our former parent corporation, merged with and into us, with our Company resulting as the surviving entity. In
connection with the same, we filed a Certificate of Ownership and Merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, and changed our name from “Amesite Operating
Company” to “Amesite Inc.” The stockholders of Amesite Parent approved the Merger Agreement on August 4, 2020. The directors and officers of Amesite Parent became our
directors and officers.
 
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on the Effective Date, each share of Amesite Parent’s common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, issued and outstanding immediately
before the Effective Date, was converted, on a one-for-one basis, into shares of our common stock.
 
Additionally, each option or warrant to acquire shares of Amesite Parent outstanding immediately before the Effective Date was converted into and became an equivalent option
to acquire shares of our common stock, upon the same terms and conditions. 
 
The assets, liabilities and operations reflected in the historical financial statements prior to the Reorganization are those of Amesite Operating Company and are recorded at the
historical cost basis of Amesite Operating Company. The financial statements after completion of the Reorganization include the assets, liabilities and results of operations of
the merged companies for all periods presented.
 
Basis of Presentation
 
The financial statements contained herein have been prepared in accordance with GAAP and the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
 

14



 

 
Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates
 
This management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based on our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. In accordance with U.S.
GAAP, we base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates if conditions differ from our assumptions. While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 in the “Notes to Financial Statements”,
we believe the following accounting policies are critical to the process of making significant judgments and estimates in preparation of our financial statements.
 
Internally-Developed Capitalized Software
 
We capitalize certain costs related to internal-use software, primarily consisting of direct labor and third-party vendor costs associated with creating the software. Software
development projects generally include three stages: the preliminary project stage (all costs are expensed as incurred), the application development stage (certain costs are
capitalized and certain costs are expensed as incurred) and the post-implementation/operation stage (all costs are expensed as incurred). Costs capitalized in the application
development stage include costs related to the design and implementation of the selected software components, software build and configuration infrastructure, and software
interfaces. Capitalization of costs requires judgment in determining when a project has reached the application development stage, the proportion of time spent in the application
development stage, and the period over which we expect to benefit from the use of that software. Once the software is placed in service, these costs are amortized on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software, which is generally three years.
 
Stock-Based Compensation
 
We have issued three types of stock-based awards under our stock plans: stock options, restricted stock units and stock warrants. All stock-based awards granted to employees,
directors and independent contractors are measured at fair value at each grant date. We rely on the Black-Scholes option pricing model for estimating the fair value of stock-
based awards granted, and expected volatility is based on the historical volatilities of peer company’s common stock. Stock options generally vest over two years from the grant
date and generally have ten-year contractual terms. Restricted stock units generally have a term of 20 months from the closing date of the agreement. Stock warrants issued
have a term of five years from the closing date of the respective private placements. Information about the assumptions used in the calculation of stock-based compensation
expense is set forth in Notes 3 and 5 in the “Notes to Financial Statements”.   
 
Revenue Recognition
 
We generate substantially all of our revenue from contractual arrangements with our businesses, colleges and universities and K-12 schools to provide a comprehensive
platform of tightly integrated technology and technology enabled services related to product offerings.
 
Performance Obligations and Timing of Recognition
 
A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer. A contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance
obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied.
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We derive revenue from annual licensing arrangements, including maintenance fees, setup fees and other variable fees for course development and miscellaneous items. Our
contracts with partners generally have two to five-year terms and have a single performance obligation. The promises to set up and provide a hosted platform of tightly
integrated technology and services partners need to attract, enroll, educate and support students are not distinct within the context of the contracts. This performance obligation
is satisfied as the partners receive and consume benefits, which occurs ratably over the contract term.
 
We do not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations because the variable consideration is allocated entirely to a wholly unsatisfied promise to transfer a service
that forms part of a single performance obligation (i.e., consideration received is based on the level of product offerings, which is unknown in advance).
 
We also receive fees that are fixed in nature, such as annual license and maintenance charges, in place of or in conjunction with variable consideration. The fees are independent
of the number of students that are enrolled in courses with our customers and are allocated to and recognized ratably over the service period of the contract that the Company’s
platform is made available to the customer (i.e. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit of the software over the contract service period).
 
The following factors affect the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of our revenue and cash flows:
 

● The majority of our customers are private and public learning institutions across various domestic regions
 

● The majority of our customers have annual payment terms
 
Contract Fulfilment Costs
 
We incur certain fulfilment costs related to software design of specific course offerings for our customers, primarily comprised of software development, configuration costs,
and implementation costs. These costs are capitalized and recorded on a contract-by-contract basis and amortized using the straight-line method over the length of the contract
(i.e. on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates). There were no costs to fulfill capitalized or
amortized as of September 30, 2020 or 2019.
 
Accounts Receivable, Contract Assets and Liabilities
 
Balance sheet items related to contracts consist of accounts receivable (net) and contract liabilities on our condensed balance sheets. Accounts receivable (net) is stated at net
realizable value, and we utilize the allowance method to provide for doubtful accounts based on management’s evaluation of the collectability of the amounts due. Our estimates
are reviewed and revised periodically based on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of accounts receivable. Historically, actual write-offs for
uncollectible accounts have not significantly differed from prior estimates. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts on accounts receivable balances as of September 30,
2020 and 2019.
 
We may recognize revenue prior to billing a customer when we have satisfied or partially satisfied our performance obligations as billings to our customers may not be made
until after the service period has commenced. As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, we do not have any contract assets.
 
Contract liabilities as of each balance sheet date represent the excess of amounts billed or received as compared to amounts recognized in revenue on our condensed statements
of operations as of the end of the reporting period, and such amounts are reflected as a current liability on our condensed balance sheets as deferred revenue. We generally
receive payments prior to completion of the service period and our performance obligations. These payments are recorded as deferred revenue until the services are delivered or
until our obligations are otherwise met, at which time revenue is recognized.
 
Some contracts also involve annual license fees, for which upfront amounts are received from customers. In these contracts, the license fees received in advance of the
platform’s launch are recorded as contract liabilities.
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  2020   2019  
       
Opening balance  $ 380,000  $        - 
Billings   572,130   - 
Less revenue recognized from continuing operations (net of returns and allowances):   (110,109)   - 
Closing balance  $ 842,021  $ - 

 
Results of Operations
 
Three months ended September 30, 2020 compared to September 30, 2019
 
Revenue
 
We generated revenues of $110,109 for the three months ended September 30, 2020 as compared to $7,700 for the three months ended September 30, 2019.
 
Operating Expenses
 
General and Administrative
 
General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel and personnel-related expenses, including executive management, legal, finance, human resources and other
departments that do not provide direct operational services. General and administrative expense also includes professional fees and other corporate expense.
 
General and administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2020 were $862,908 as compared to $526,389 for the three months ended September 30, 2019.
The increase of $336,519 is due primarily to bonuses awarded the Chief Executive Officer ($200,000) and Chief Financial Officer ($50,000) in September and October 2020 in
connection with the completion of the Company’s initial public offering of stock on September 29, 2020. In addition, personnel hires attributed to the increase during the three
months ended September 30, 2020.
 
Technology and Content Development
 
Technology and content development expenses consist primarily of personnel and personnel-related expense and contracted services associated with the ongoing improvement
and maintenance of our platform as well as hosting and licensing costs. Technology and content expense also include the amortization of capitalized software costs.
 
Technology and content development expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2020 were $467,763 as compared to $261,686 for the three months ended September
30, 2019. The increase of $206,077 is due primarily to contract services that support the development of our technology platforms and amortization of capitalized software costs
which increased $67,000 from $91,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2019.
 
Sales and Marketing
 
Sales and marketing expense consist primarily of activities to attract customers to our offerings. This includes personnel and personnel-related expenses, various search engine
and social media costs as well as the cost of advertising.
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Sales and marketing expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2020 were $251,884 as compared to $175,089 for the three months ended September 30, 2019. The
increase of $76,795 is due primarily to increased personnel and personnel-related costs of $20,044 and increased contracted services related to various search engine, social
media and advertising costs.
 
Interest Income. For the three months ended September 30, 2020, interest income totaled $13 as compared to interest income of $2,447 for the three months ended September
30, 2019.
 
Interest Expense. Interest expense for the three months ended September 30, 2020 totaled $3,613,831 as compared to $80 for the three months ended September 30, 2019.
 
In connection with the Company’s initial public offering of common stock (the “Offering”) on September 29, 2020, Convertible Notes Payable (Notes) (totaling $2,255,815,
including accrued interest) were converted into 1,127,872 shares of common stock at $2.00 per share. As the Offering price was $5.00 per share, the Company recognized an
expense totaling $3,383,546 which represents the discount provided to the Note holders. This expense is recorded within interest expense in the condensed statement of
operations. Additionally, upon completion of the Offering, the remaining unamortized debt issuance costs of $182,900 were fully amortized and included within interest
expense. See Note 6 to Notes to the Financial Statements.
 
Net Loss. As a result of the increased operating expenses noted above as well as interest expense incurred in connection with our Offering, our net loss for the three months
ended September 30, 2020 was $5,086,264 as compared to a net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2019 of $953,097.
 
Capital Expenditures
 
During the three months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, we had capital asset additions of $222,049 and $252,838, respectively, which were comprised of $202,076 and
$249,360 respectively, in capitalized technology and content development, and $19,343 and $3,478, respectively, of property and equipment. We will continue to capitalize
significant software development costs, comprised primarily of internal payroll, payroll related and contractor costs, as we build out and complete our technology platforms.
 
Financial Position, Liquidity, and Capital Resources
 
Overview
 
We are not currently profitable, and we cannot provide any assurance that we will ever be profitable. We incurred a net loss of $5,086,264 and $953,097 for the three months
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
 
As of September 30, 2020, our cash balance totaled $16,355,165.
 
On September 29, 2020, the Company issued 3,000,000 shares of its common stock at a price of $5.00 per share (for total net proceeds of approximately $12.8 million) in its
initial public offering (the “Offering”). In connection with the Offering, the Company issued warrants to the underwriter to purchase up to 150,000 shares of common stock (five
percent (5%) of the common shares sold in the Offering) with an exercise price equal to $6.00 per share and a term of five (5) years. In connection with the Offering, the
Company cancelled an aggregate of 126,532 warrants previously issued to nonemployees in exchange for services.
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At present, we believe that our cash balances should be sufficient to satisfy our anticipated operating and investing needs through June 2022. However, it is possible that we will
choose to accelerate our plan of operations in order to attract and sign more customers or to support current customers, and that we will require more funds than we currently
have available to meet those needs. The source, timing and need for any future financing will depend principally upon market conditions, and, more specifically, on the decision
to accelerate our plan of operations or alter our strategic growth plans. Funding may not be available when needed, at all, or on terms acceptable to us. Lack of necessary funds
may require us to, among other things, delay, scale back or eliminate any decision to accelerate our plan of operations or alter our strategic growth plans.
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
We did not have during the periods presented, nor do we currently have, any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined under applicable SEC rules.
 
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
 
None. 
 
 Item 3. Qualitative And Quantitative Discussion About Market Risk.
 
The Company is not required to provide the information required by this Item as it is a “smaller reporting company,” as defined in Rule 229.10(f)(1).
 
 Item 4. Controls And Procedures.
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”). Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective.
 
Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
 
During the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13(a)-15(f) or
15(d)-15(f)) that occurred during the period covered by this quarterly report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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 PART II – OTHER INFORMATION

 
 Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

 
None.
 
 Item 1A. Risk Factors.
 
Our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows may be impacted by a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control, including those set
forth in our Prospectus, the occurrence of any one of which could have a material adverse effect on our actual results. There have been no material changes in our risk factors
from those previously disclosed in our Prospectus.
 
 Item 2. Unregistered Sales Of Equity Securities And Use Of Proceeds.
 
(a) Sales of Unregistered Securities
 
During the period ended September 30, 2020, 65,000 options to purchase common stock were issued to employees under our 2018 Equity Incentive Plan.
 
The foregoing issuance was exempt from registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.
 
(b) Use of IPO Proceeds

 
On September 29, 2020, the Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO”), in which we issued 3,000,000 shares of our common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, at
a public offering price of $5.00 per share, resulting in gross proceeds of $15.0 million. All of the shares of common stock issued and sold in our in the IPO were registered
under the Securities Act pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-248001), which was declared effective by the SEC on September 24, 2020. 

 
We received net proceeds of $12.8 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and offering expenses borne by us. No payments were made by us to
directors, officers or persons owning ten percent or more of our common stock or to their associates, or to our affiliates, other than payments in the ordinary course of business
to officers for salaries and to non-employee directors pursuant to our director compensation policy. Laidlaw & Company (UK) Ltd. acted as lead book-running manager of the
offering and as representative of the underwriters for the offering.

 
There has been no material change in the planned use of proceeds from our IPO from that described in the final prospectus related to the offering, dated September 24, 2020, as
filed with the SEC.
 
 Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
 
None.
 
 Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
 
Not applicable.
 
 Item 5. Other Information.
 
None.
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 Item 6. Exhibits
 
Exhibit    Incorporated by Reference  Filed
Number  Exhibit Description  Form  File No.  Exhibit  Filing Date  Herewith

             
3.1  Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant          X 

             
3.2  Bylaws of the Registrant          X 

             
31.1*

 

Certification of Principal Executive, Financial and Accounting Officer pursuant to
Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.          

X

             
32.1*

 

Certification of Principal Executive, Financial and Accounting Officer Pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.          

X

             
101.INS  XBRL Instance Document          X

             
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document          X

             
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document          X

             
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document          X

             
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document          X

             
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document          X

 
* This certification is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act), or otherwise subject to the liability of

that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act.
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 SIGNATURES

 
In accordance with Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
Date: November 16, 2020 AMESITE INC.
   
 By: /s/ Ann Marie Sastry, Ph.D.
  Ann Marie Sastry, Ph.D.
  Chief Executive Officer
  (Principal Executive Officer)
  (Principal Financial Officer)
  (Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 3.1
 

 
Delaware

Page 1
 The First State  

 
I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND

CORRECT COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP, WHICH MERGES:
 

“AMESITE INC.”, A DELAWARE CORPORATION,
 

WITH AND INTO “AMESITE OPERATING COMPANY” UNDER THE NAME OF “AMESITE INC.”, A CORPORATION ORGANIZED AND EXISTING
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE, AS RECEIVED AND FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE EIGHTEENTH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, A.D. 2020,
AT 3:39 O’CLOCK P.M.
 
 

6616018 8100M
SR# 20207357607

Authentication: 203687910
Date: 09-18-20

 
You may verify this certificate online at corp.delaware.gov/authver.shtml
 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND MERGER
MERGING

AMESITEINC.
WITH AND INTO

AMESITE OPERATING COMPANY

State of Delaware
Secretary of State

Division of Corporations
Delivered 03:39 PM 09/18/2020

FILED 03:39 PM 09/18/2020
SR 20207357607 - File Number 6616018

 
Pursuant to Section 253 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”), Amesite Inc. (the “Corporation”), a Delaware corporation, does hereby certify to

the following information relating to the merger (the “Merger”) of the Corporation with and into Amesite Operating Company, a Delaware corporation (the “Subsidiary”),
with the Subsidiary remaining as the surviving corporation:
 

1.  The Corporation owns all of the outstanding shares of each class of capital stock of the Subsidiary.
 

2.  The Board of Directors of the Corporation, by resolutions duly adopted by unanimous written consent on July 12, 2020 and attached hereto as Exhibit A,
determined to merge the Corporation with and into the Subsidiary and to change the Subsidiary’s name to “Amesite Inc.” pursuant to Section 253 of the DGCL. Holders of a
majority of each class of capital stock of the Corporation approved the Merger at a meeting held on August 4, 2020.
 

3.  The Subsidiary shall be the surviving corporation of the Merger.
 

4.  The Certificate of Incorporation attached hereto as Exhibit B, shall be the Certificate of Incorporation of the surviving corporation.
 

5.  This Certificate of Ownership and Merger and the Merger shall become effective upon the filing of such Certificate of Ownership and Merger with the Delaware
Secretary of State.
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Ownership and Merger to be signed by an authorized officer on the 18th of September, 2020.
 
 AMESITE INC.
   
 By /s/ Ann Marie Sastry, Ph.D.
 Name: Ann Marie Sastry, Ph.D.
 Title: Chief Executive Officer

 

 



 

 
EXHIBIT A

 
BOARD RESOLUTIONS

 
WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be advisable and in the best interests of the Corporation to enter into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between the

Corporation and Amesite Operating Company, a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation (“Amesite OpCo”)，substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit A (the “Merger Agreement”)，pursuant to which the corporation will merge with and into Amesite OpCo, with Amesite OpCo as the surviving corporation
(the “Merger”).
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT:
 

RESOLVED, that the form, terms and provisions of the Merger Agreement, including all exhibits and schedules attached thereto, be, and hereby are, determined to be
fair, advisable and in the best interest of the corporation and its stockholders; and that the Merger Agreement be, and hereby is, adopted and approved; and be it further
 

RESOLVED, that the Chief Executive Officer and any other officer of the corporation (each such person, an “Authorized Officer”) be, and each of them hereby is,
authorized and empowered to execute and deliver the Merger Agreement, including all exhibits and schedules attached thereto, in the name and on behalf of the corporation with
such additions, deletions or changes therein (including, without limitation, any additions, deletions or changes to any schedules or exhibits thereto) as the Authorized Officer
executing the same shall approve (the execution and delivery thereof by any such Authorized Officer to be conclusive evidence of his or her approval of any such additions,
deletions or changes); and be it further
 

RESOLVED, that the Corporation be, and hereby is, authorized and empowered to perform all of its obligations under the Merger Agreement, including but not
limited to, the Merger; and be it further
 

RESOLVED, that holders of the common stock of the Corporation, par value $0.0001 per share, upon surrender of any certificates therefor, shall receive an
equivalent number of shares of the common stock of the Surviving Corporation, par value $0.0001 per share; and be it further
 

RESOLVED, that the Authorized Officers be, and each of them hereby is, authorized and empowered to prepare, execute and file such governmental filings as may
be necessary or required by law in connection with the Merger, including, but not limited to, the filing of the Certificate of Ownership and Merger with the Secretary of State of
Delaware; and be it further
 

RESOLVED, that the Board hereby recommends that the stockholders approve and adopt the Merger Agreement.
 

 



 

 
EXHIBIT B

 
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

of
AMESITE INC.

 
ARTICLE I

 
The name of the corporation is Amesite Inc. (the “Corporation”).

 
ARTICLE II

 
The address of the registered office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is 850 New Burton Road, Suite 201, City of Dover, County of Kent 19904. The name

of its registered agent at such address is Cogency Global Inc.
 

ARTICLE III
 

The nature of the business or purposes to be conducted or promoted is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the
DGCL.
 

ARTICLE IV
 

A.  The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is (i) 100,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.0001 par value
per share (“Common Stock”), and (ii) 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.0001 par value per share (“Preferred Stock”).
 

B.  The Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series. The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is hereby expressly authorized,
by filing a certificate (“Certificate of Designation”) pursuant to the DGCL, to provide for the issue of any or all of the unissued and undesignated shares of the Preferred Stock
in one or more series, and to fix the number of shares and to determine or alter for each such series, such voting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, and such
designation, preferences and relative, participating, optional, or other rights and such qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof as shall be stated and expressed in the
resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board providing for the issuance of such shares and as may be permitted by the DGCL. The Board of Directors is also expressly
authorized to increase or decrease the number of shares of any series subsequent to the issuance of shares of that series, but not below the number of shares of such series then
outstanding. In case the number of shares of any series shall be decreased in accordance with the foregoing sentence, the shares constituting such decrease shall resume the
status that they had prior to the adoption of the resolution originally fixing the number of shares of such series. The number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock may be
increased or decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of the stock of the
Company entitled to vote thereon, without a separate vote of the holders of the Preferred Stock, or of any series thereof, unless a vote of any such holders is required pursuant to
the terms of any Certificate of Designation filed with respect to any series of Preferred Stock.
 

Each outstanding share of Common Stock shall entitle the holder thereof to one vote on each matter properly submitted to the stockholders of the Company for their
vote; provided, however, that, except as otherwise required by law, holders of Common Stock shall not be entitled to vote on any amendment to this Certificate of Incorporation
(this “Certificate of Incorporation”) (including any Certificate of Designation filed with respect to any series of Preferred Stock) that relates solely to the terms of one or more
outstanding series of Preferred Stock if the holders of such affected series of Preferred Stock are entitled, either separately or together as a class with the holders of one or more
other series of Preferred Stock, to vote thereon by law or pursuant to this Certificate of Incorporation (including any Certificate of Designation filed with respect to any series of
Preferred Stock).
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ARTICLE V

 
In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by the DGCL, subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock that may be designated

from time to time, the Board is expressly authorized to adopt, amend or repeal the bylaws of the Corporation (the “Bylaws”), subject to the power of the stockholders of the
Corporation to alter or repeal any Bylaws whether adopted by them or otherwise; provided, however, that, in addition to any vote of the holders of any class or series of stock of
the Corporation required by law or by this Certificate of Incorporation (including any Certificate of Designation that may be filed from time to time), the affirmative vote of
holders of not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the votes of all outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors, considered for purposes hereof as a single class, shall be required for the stockholders to adopt new Bylaws or to alter, amend or repeal the Bylaws.
 

ARTICLE VI
 

A.  The management of the business and the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation shall be vested in the Board. The number of directors which shall constitute the
whole Board shall be fixed exclusively by one or more resolutions adopted from time to time by the Board.
 

B.  The directors shall be divided into three classes, designated as Class I, Class II and Class III, as nearly equal in number as possible. Directors shall be assigned to
each class in accordance with a resolution or resolutions adopted by the Board. At the first annual meeting of stockholders following the effectiveness of this Certificate of
Incorporation (the “Qualifying Record Date”)，the term of office of the Class I directors shall expire and Class I directors shall be elected for a full term of three years. At the
second annual meeting of stockholders following the Qualifying Record Date, the term of office of the Class II directors shall expire and Class II directors shall be elected for a
full term of three years. At the third annual meeting of stockholders following the Qualifying Record Date, the term of office of the Class III directors shall expire and Class III
directors shall be elected for a full term of three years. At each succeeding annual meeting of stockholders, directors shall be elected for a full term of three years to succeed the
directors of the class whose terms expire at such annual meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Article VLB., each director shall serve until his or her
successor is duly elected and qualified, or until his or her earlier death, resignation or removal. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board shall shorten the
term of any incumbent director.
 

C.  The Board or any individual director may be removed from office only for cause at a meeting of stockholders called for that purpose, by the affirmative vote of the
holders of at least at least sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the voting power of all the then outstanding shares of voting stock of the Corporation entitled to vote at
an election of directors, voting together as a single class.
 

D.  Any vacancies on the Board resulting from death, resignation, disqualification, removal or other causes and any newly created directorships resulting from any
increase in the number of directors shall, unless the Board determines by resolution that any such vacancies or newly created directorships shall be filled by the stockholders,
except as otherwise provided by law and or by this Certificate of Incorporation or any Certificate of Designation that may be filed with respect to a series of Preferred Stock, be
filled only by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, even though less than a quorum of the Board, and not by the stockholders. Any director elected in
accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold office for the remainder of the full term of the director for which the vacancy was created or occurred and until such director’s
successor shall have been elected and qualified.
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E. The directors of the Corporation need not be elected by written ballot unless the Bylaws so provide.

 
F. There shall be no cumulative voting in the election of directors.
 

ARTICLE VII
 

A.  Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock or any other class of stock or series thereof having a preference over the Common Stock as to
dividends or upon liquidation, any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the Corporation must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of
the stockholders of the Corporation. The taking of any action by written consent of the stockholders in lieu of a meeting of the stockholders is specifically denied.
 

B.  Special meetings of the stockholders of the Corporation may be called, for any purpose or purposes, by the Secretary of the Corporation at the direction of the
Board, pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board, but such special meetings may not be called by any other person or persons.
 

C.  Advance notice of stockholder nominations for the election of directors and of business to be brought by stockholders before any meeting of the stockholders of the
Corporation shall be given in the manner provided in the Bylaws of the Corporation.
 

ARTICLE VIII
 

A. To the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, a director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary
damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director. If the DGCL is amended after approval by the stockholders of this Article VIII to authorize corporate action further
eliminating or limiting the personal liability of directors, then the liability of a director of the Corporation shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the
DGCL as so amended.
 

B. Any repeal or modification of the foregoing provisions of this Article VIII shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director of the Corporation existing
at the time of, or increase the liability of any director of the Corporation with respect to any acts or omissions of such director occurring prior to, such repeal or modification.
 

ARTICLE IX
 

Unless the Corporation consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware shall, to the fullest extent permitted
by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for (a) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Corporation, (b) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary
duty owed by any director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation to the Corporation or the Corporation’s stockholders, (c) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant
to any provision of the DGCL, this Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, or (d) any action asserting a claim that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine, in each such
case subject to the Court of Chancery having personal jurisdiction over the indispensable parties named as defendants therein and the claim not being one which is vested in the
exclusive jurisdiction of a court or forum other than the Court of Chancery or for which the Court of Chancery does not have subject matter jurisdiction. Any person purchasing
or otherwise acquiring any interest in any shares of the Corporation’s capital stock shall be deemed to have notice of, and to have consented to the provisions of this Article IX.
 

Unless the Corporation consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United States of America shall be the exclusive
forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise
acquiring any interest in shares of capital stock of the Corporation shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the provisions of this Article IX.
 

ARTICLE X
 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation or any provision of law which might otherwise permit a lesser vote or no vote, but in addition
to any affirmative vote of the holders of any particular class or series of the Corporation required by law or by this Certificate of Incorporation or any Certificate of Designation
that may be filed with respect to a series of Preferred Stock, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) of the voting power of all of
the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, shall be required to alter,
amend or repeal Articles VI, VII, VIII, IX and this Article X.
 

*    *    *
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Exhibit 3.2
 

BYLAWS
of

AMESITE INC.
 

ARTICLE I - CORPORATE OFFICES
 

1.1 REGISTERED OFFICE.
 
The registered office of Amesite Inc. (the “Corporation”), shall be fixed in the Corporation’s certificate of incorporation, as the same may be amended from time to time

(the “certificate of incorporation”).
 
1.2 OTHER OFFICES.
 
The Corporation’s board of directors (the “Board”) may at any time establish other offices at any place or places where the Corporation is qualified to do business.
 

ARTICLE II - MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS
 

2.1 PLACE OF MEETINGS.
 
Meetings of stockholders shall be held at any place, within or outside the State of Delaware, designated by the Board. The Board may, in its sole discretion, determine that

a meeting of stockholders shall not be held at any place, but may instead be held solely by means of remote communication as authorized by Section 211(a)(2) of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”). In the absence of any such designation or determination, stockholders’ meetings shall be held at the Corporation’s
principal executive office.

 
2.2 ANNUAL MEETING.
 
The Board shall designate the date and time of the annual meeting. At the annual meeting, directors shall be elected and other proper business properly brought before the

meeting in accordance with Section 2.4 may be transacted.
 
2.3 SPECIAL MEETING.
 
A special meeting of the stockholders may be called at any time by the Secretary of the Corporation at the direction of the Board, pursuant to a resolution adopted by a

majority of the entire Board, but such special meetings may not be called by any other person or persons.
 
No business may be transacted at such special meeting other than the business specified in such notice to stockholders. Nothing contained in this paragraph of this

Section 2.3 shall be construed as limiting, fixing, or affecting the time when a meeting of stockholders called by action of the Board may be held.
 

 



 

 
2.4 ADVANCE NOTICE PROCEDURES FOR BUSINESS BROUGHT BEFORE A MEETING.
 

(i) At an annual meeting of the stockholders, only such business shall be conducted as shall have been properly brought before the meeting. To be properly brought
before an annual meeting, business must be (a) specified in a notice of meeting given by or at the direction of the Board, (b) if not specified in a notice of meeting, otherwise
brought before the meeting by or at the direction of the Board or the chairperson of the Board, or (c) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by a stockholder present in
person who (A)(1) was a beneficial owner of shares of the Corporation both at the time of giving the notice provided for in this Section 2.4 and at the time of the meeting, (2) is
entitled to vote at the meeting and (3) has complied with this Section 2.4 in all applicable respects, or (B) properly made such proposal in accordance with Rule 14a-8 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder (as so amended and inclusive of such rules and regulations, the “Exchange
Act”). The foregoing clause (c) shall be the exclusive means for a stockholder to propose business to be brought before an annual meeting of the stockholders. The only matters
that may be brought before a special meeting are the matters specified in the notice of meeting given by or at the direction of the person calling the meeting pursuant to
Section 2.3 of these bylaws, and stockholders shall not be permitted to propose business to be brought before a special meeting of the stockholders. For purposes of this
Section 2.4, “present in person” shall mean that the stockholder proposing that the business be brought before the annual meeting of the Corporation, or, if the proposing
stockholder is not an individual, a qualified representative of such proposing stockholder, appear at such annual meeting. A “qualified representative” of such proposing
stockholder shall be, if such proposing stockholder is (x) a general or limited partnership, any general partner or person who functions as a general partner of the general or
limited partnership or who controls the general or limited partnership, (y) a corporation or a limited liability company, any officer or person who functions as an officer of the
corporation or limited liability company or any officer, director, general partner or person who functions as an officer, director or general partner of any entity ultimately in
control of the corporation or limited liability company or (z) a trust, any trustee of such trust. Stockholders seeking to nominate persons for election to the Board must comply
with Section 2.5 of these bylaws, and this Section 2.4 shall not be applicable to nominations except as expressly provided in Section 2.5 of these bylaws.

 
(ii) Without qualification, for business to be properly brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder, the stockholder must (a) provide Timely Notice (as defined

below) thereof in writing and in proper form to the Secretary of the Corporation and (b) provide any updates or supplements to such notice at the times and in the forms required
by this Section 2.4. To be timely, a stockholder’s notice must be delivered to, or mailed and received at, the principal executive offices of the Corporation not less than ninety
(90) days nor more than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the one-year anniversary of the preceding year’s annual meeting; provided, however, that if the date of the
annual meeting is more than thirty (30) days before or more than sixty (60) days after such anniversary date, notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so delivered, or
mailed and received, not later than the ninetieth (90th) day prior to such annual meeting or, if later, the tenth (10th) day following the day on which public disclosure of the date
of such annual meeting was first made (such notice within such time periods, “Timely Notice”). In no event shall any adjournment or postponement of an annual meeting or the
announcement thereof commence a new time period for the giving of Timely Notice as described above.
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(iii) To be in proper form for purposes of this Section 2.4, a stockholder’s notice to the Secretary shall set forth:
 

(a) As to each Proposing Person (as defined below), (A) the name and address of such Proposing Person (including, if applicable, the name and address that
appear on the Corporation’s books and records); and (B) the class or series and number of shares of the Corporation that are, directly or indirectly, owned of record or
beneficially owned (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) by such Proposing Person, except that such Proposing Person shall in all events be deemed to
beneficially own any shares of any class or series of the Corporation as to which such Proposing Person has a right to acquire beneficial ownership at any time in the future (the
disclosures to be made pursuant to the foregoing clauses (A) and (B) are referred to as “Stockholder Information”);

 
(b) As to each Proposing Person, (A) the full notional amount of any securities that, directly or indirectly, underlie any “derivative security” (as such term is

defined in Rule 16a-1(c) under the Exchange Act) that constitutes a “call equivalent position” (as such term is defined in Rule 16a-1(b) under the Exchange Act) (“ Synthetic
Equity Position”) and that is, directly or indirectly, held or maintained by such Proposing Person with respect to any shares of any class or series of shares of the
Corporation; provided that, for the purposes of the definition of “Synthetic Equity Position,” the term “derivative security” shall also include any security or instrument that
would not otherwise constitute a “derivative security” as a result of any feature that would make any conversion, exercise or similar right or privilege of such security or
instrument becoming determinable only at some future date or upon the happening of a future occurrence, in which case the determination of the amount of securities into which
such security or instrument would be convertible or exercisable shall be made assuming that such security or instrument is immediately convertible or exercisable at the time of
such determination; and, provided, further, that any Proposing Person satisfying the requirements of Rule l3d-1(b)(1) under the Exchange Act (other than a Proposing Person
that so satisfies Rule l3d-1(b)(1) under the Exchange Act solely by reason of Rule l3d-1(b)(1) (ii)(E)) shall not be deemed to hold or maintain the notional amount of any
securities that underlie a Synthetic Equity Position held by such Proposing Person as a hedge with respect to a bona fide derivatives trade or position of such Proposing Person
arising in the ordinary course of such Proposing Person’s business as a derivatives dealer, (B) any rights to dividends on the shares of any class or series of shares of the
Corporation owned beneficially by such Proposing Person that are separated or separable from the underlying shares of the Corporation, (C)(x) if such Proposing Person is (i) a
general or limited partnership, syndicate or other group, the identity of each general partner and each person who functions as a general partner of the general or limited
partnership, each member of the syndicate or group and each person controlling the general partner or member, (ii) a corporation or a limited liability company, the identity of
each officer and each person who functions as an officer of the corporation or limited liability company, each person controlling the corporation or limited liability company
and each officer, director, general partner and person who functions as an officer, director or general partner of any entity ultimately in control of the corporation or limited
liability company or (iii) a trust, any trustee of such trust (each such person or persons set forth in the preceding clauses (i), (ii) and (iii), a “Responsible Person”), any fiduciary
duties owed by such Responsible Person to the equity holders or other beneficiaries of such Proposing Person and any material interests or relationships of such Responsible
Person that are not shared generally by other record or beneficial holders of the shares of any class or series of the Corporation and that reasonably could have influenced the
decision of such Proposing Person to propose such business to be brought before the meeting, and (y) if such Proposing Person is a natural person, any material interests or
relationships of such natural person that are not shared generally by other record or beneficial holders of the shares of any class or series of the Corporation and that reasonably
could have influenced the decision of such Proposing Person to propose such business to be brought before the meeting, (D) any material shares or any Synthetic Equity
Position in any principal competitor of the Corporation in any principal industry of the Corporation held by such Proposing Persons, (E) a summary of any material discussions
regarding the business proposed to be brought before the meeting (x) between or among any of the Proposing Persons or (y) between or among any Proposing Person and any
other record or beneficial holder of the shares of any class or series of the Corporation (including their names), (F) any material pending or threatened legal proceeding in which
such Proposing Person is a party or material participant involving the Corporation or any of its officers or directors, or any affiliate of the Corporation, (G) any other material
relationship between such Proposing Person, on the one hand, and the Corporation, any affiliate of the Corporation or any principal competitor of the Corporation, on the other
hand, (H) any direct or indirect material interest in any material contract or agreement of such Proposing Person with the Corporation, any affiliate of the Corporation or any
principal competitor of the Corporation (including, in any such case, any employment agreement, collective bargaining agreement or consulting agreement) and (I) any other
information relating to such Proposing Person that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement or other filing required to be made in connection with solicitations of
proxies or consents by such Proposing Person in support of the business proposed to be brought before the meeting pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act (the
disclosures to be made pursuant to the foregoing clauses (A) through (I) are referred to as “Disclosable Interests”); provided, however, that Disclosable Interests shall not
include any such disclosures with respect to the ordinary course business activities of any broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee who is a Proposing
Person solely as a result of being the stockholder directed to prepare and submit the notice required by these bylaws on behalf of a beneficial owner; and
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(c) As to each item of business that the stockholder proposes to bring before the annual meeting, (A) a brief description of the business desired to be brought

before the annual meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the annual meeting and any material interest in such business of each Proposing Person, (B) the text of
the proposal or business (including the text of any resolutions proposed for consideration and in the event that such business includes a proposal to amend the bylaws of the
Corporation, the language of the proposed amendment), (C) a reasonably detailed description of all agreements, arrangements and understandings between or among any of the
Proposing Persons or between or among any Proposing Person and any other person or entity (including their names) in connection with the proposal of such business by such
stockholder and (D) any other information relating to such item of business that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement or other filing required to be made in
connection with solicitations of proxies in support of the business proposed to be brought before the meeting pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act; provided, however,
that the disclosures required by this Section 2.4(iii) shall not include any disclosures with respect to any broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee who
is a Proposing Person solely as a result of being the stockholder directed to prepare and submit the notice required by these bylaws on behalf of a beneficial owner.

 
(iv) For purposes of this Section 2.4, the term “Proposing Person” shall mean (a) the stockholder providing the notice of business proposed to be brought before an

annual meeting, (b) the beneficial owner or beneficial owners, if different, on whose behalf the notice of the business proposed to be brought before the annual meeting is made
and (c) any participant (as defined in paragraphs (a)(ii)-(vi) of Instruction 3 to Item 4 of Schedule 14A) with such stockholder in such solicitation or associate (within the
meaning of Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act for the purposes of these bylaws) of such stockholder or beneficial owner.

 
(v) A Proposing Person shall update and supplement its notice to the Corporation of its intent to propose business at an annual meeting, if necessary, so that the

information provided or required to be provided in such notice pursuant to this Section 2.4 shall be true and correct as of the record date for notice of the meeting and as of the
date that is ten (10) business days prior to the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof, and such update and supplement shall be delivered to, or mailed and
received by, the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not later than five (5) business days after the record date for notice of the meeting (in the case of
the update and supplement required to be made as of such record date), and not later than eight (8) business days prior to the date for the meeting or, if practicable, any
adjournment or postponement thereof (and, if not practicable, on the first practicable date prior to the date to which the meeting has been adjourned or postponed) (in the case of
the update and supplement required to be made as of ten (10) business days prior to the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof).

 
(vi) Notwithstanding anything in these bylaws to the contrary, no business shall be conducted at an annual meeting that is not properly brought before the meeting in

accordance with this Section 2.4. The presiding officer of the meeting shall, if the facts warrant, determine that the business was not properly brought before the meeting in
accordance with this Section 2.4, and if he or she should so determine, he or she shall so declare to the meeting and any such business not properly brought before the meeting
shall not be transacted.

 
(vii) This Section 2.4 is expressly intended to apply to any business proposed to be brought before an annual meeting of stockholders, other than any proposal made in

accordance with Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act and included in the Corporation’s proxy statement. In addition to the requirements of this Section 2.4 with respect to any
business proposed to be brought before an annual meeting, each Proposing Person shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Exchange Act with respect to any such
business. Nothing in this Section 2.4 shall be deemed to affect the rights of stockholders to request inclusion of proposals in the Corporation’s proxy statement pursuant to Rule
l4a-8 under the Exchange Act.

 
(viii) For purposes of these bylaws, “public disclosure” shall mean disclosure in a press release reported by a national news service or in a document publicly filed by

the Corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Sections 13, 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.
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2.5 ADVANCE NOTICE PROCEDURES FOR NOMINATIONS OF DIRECTORS.
 

(i) Nominations of any person for election to the Board at an annual meeting or at a special meeting (but only if the election of directors is a matter specified in the
notice of meeting given by or at the direction of the person calling such special meeting) may be made at such meeting only (a) by or at the direction of the Board, including by
any committee or persons authorized to do so by the Board or these bylaws, or (b) by a stockholder present in person (A) who was a beneficial owner of shares of the
Corporation both at the time of giving the notice provided for in this Section 2.5 and at the time of the meeting, (B) is entitled to vote at the meeting and (C) has complied with
this Section 2.5 as to such notice and nomination. The foregoing clause (b) shall be the exclusive means for a stockholder to make any nomination of a person or persons for
election to the Board at an annual meeting or special meeting. For purposes of this Section 2.5, “present in person” shall mean that the stockholder proposing that the business
be brought before the meeting of the Corporation, or, if the proposing stockholder is not an individual, a qualified representative of such stockholder, appear at such meeting. A
“qualified representative” of such proposing stockholder shall be, if such proposing stockholder is (x) a general or limited partnership, any general partner or person who
functions as a general partner of the general or limited partnership or who controls the general or limited partnership, (y) a corporation or a limited liability company, any officer
or person who functions as an officer of the corporation or limited liability company or any officer, director, general partner or person who functions as an officer, director or
general partner of any entity ultimately in control of the corporation or limited liability company or (z) a trust, any trustee of such trust.

 
(ii) Without qualification, for a stockholder to make any nomination of a person or persons for election to the Board at an annual meeting, the stockholder must

(a) provide Timely Notice (as defined in Section 2.4(ii) of these bylaws) thereof in writing and in proper form to the Secretary of the Corporation, (b) provide the information
with respect to such stockholder and its proposed nominee as required by this Section 2.5, and (c) provide any updates or supplements to such notice at the times and in the
forms required by this Section 2.5. Without qualification, if the election of directors is a matter specified in the notice of meeting given by or at the direction of the person
calling such special meeting, then for a stockholder to make any nomination of a person or persons for election to the Board at a special meeting, the stockholder must
(a) provide timely notice thereof in writing and in proper form to the Secretary of the Corporation at the principal executive offices of the Corporation, (b) provide the
information with respect to such stockholder and its proposed nominee as required by this Section 2.5, and (c) provide any updates or supplements to such notice at the times
and in the forms required by this Section 2.5. To be timely, a stockholder’s notice for nominations to be made at a special meeting must be delivered to, or mailed and received
at, the principal executive offices of the Corporation not earlier than the one hundred twentieth (120th) day prior to such special meeting and not later than the ninetieth
(90th) day prior to such special meeting or, if later, the tenth (10th) day following the day on which public disclosure (as defined in Section 2.4(ix) of these bylaws) of the date
of such special meeting was first made. In no event shall any adjournment or postponement of an annual meeting or special meeting or the announcement thereof commence a
new time period for the giving of a stockholder’s notice as described above.
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(iii) To be in proper form for purposes of this Section 2.5, a stockholder’s notice to the Secretary shall set forth:
 

(a) As to each Nominating Person (as defined below), the Stockholder Information (as defined in Section 2.4(iii)(a) of these bylaws) except that for purposes
of this Section 2.5, the term “Nominating Person” shall be substituted for the term “Proposing Person” in all places it appears in Section 2.4(iii)(a);

 
(b) As to each Nominating Person, any Disclosable Interests (as defined in Section 2.4(iii)(b), except that for purposes of this Section 2.5 the term

“Nominating Person” shall be substituted for the term “Proposing Person” in all places it appears in Section 2.4(iii)(b) and the disclosure with respect to the business to be
brought before the meeting in Section 2.4(iii)(b) shall be made with respect to the election of directors at the meeting);

 
(c) As to each person whom a Nominating Person proposes to nominate for election as a director, (A) all information with respect to such proposed nominee

that would be required to be set forth in a stockholder’s notice pursuant to this Section 2.5 if such proposed nominee were a Nominating Person, (B) all information relating to
such proposed nominee that is required to be disclosed in a proxy statement or other filings required to be made in connection with solicitations of proxies for election of
directors in a contested election pursuant to Section 14(a) under the Exchange Act (including such proposed nominee’s written consent to being named in the proxy statement as
a nominee and to serving as a director if elected), (C) a description of any direct or indirect material interest in any material contract or agreement between or among any
Nominating Person, on the one hand, and each proposed nominee or his or her respective associates or any other participants in such solicitation, on the other hand, including,
without limitation, all information that would be required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404 under Regulation S-K if such Nominating Person were the “registrant” for
purposes of such rule and the proposed nominee were a director or executive officer of such registrant (the disclosures to be made pursuant to the foregoing clauses (A) through
(C) are referred to as “Nominee Information”), and (D) a completed and signed questionnaire, representation and agreement as provided in Section 2.5(vi); and

 
(d) The Corporation may require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information (A) as may reasonably be required by the Corporation to determine

the eligibility of such proposed nominee to serve as an independent director of the Corporation in accordance with the Corporation’s Corporate Governance Guidelines or
(B) that could be material to a reasonable stockholder’s understanding of the independence or lack of independence of such proposed nominee.

 
(iv) For purposes of this Section 2.5, the term “Nominating Person” shall mean (a) the stockholder providing the notice of the nomination proposed to be made at the

meeting, (b) the beneficial owner or beneficial owners, if different, on whose behalf the notice of the nomination proposed to be made at the meeting is made and (c) any
associate of such stockholder or beneficial owner or any other participant in such solicitation.
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(v) A stockholder providing notice of any nomination proposed to be made at a meeting shall further update and supplement such notice, if necessary, so that the

information provided or required to be provided in such notice pursuant to this Section 2.5 shall be true and correct as of the record date for notice of the meeting and as of the
date that is ten (10) business days prior to the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof, and such update and supplement shall be delivered to, or mailed and
received by, the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the Corporation not later than five (5) business days after the record date for notice of the meeting (in the case of
the update and supplement required to be made as of such record date), and not later than eight (8) business days prior to the date for the meeting or, if practicable, any
adjournment or postponement thereof (and, if not practicable, on the first practicable date prior to the date to which the meeting has been adjourned or postponed) (in the case of
the update and supplement required to be made as often (10) business days prior to the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof).

  
(vi) To be eligible to be a nominee for election as a director of the Corporation at an annual or special meeting, the proposed nominee must be nominated in the

manner prescribed in Section 2.5 and must deliver (in accordance with the time period prescribed for delivery in a notice to such proposed nominee given by or on behalf of the
Board), to the Secretary at the principal executive offices of the Corporation, (a) a completed written questionnaire (in a form provided by the Corporation) with respect to the
background, qualifications, stock ownership and independence of such proposed nominee and (b) a written representation and agreement (in form provided by the Corporation)
that such proposed nominee (A) is not and, if elected as a director during his or her term of office, will not become a party to (1) any agreement, arrangement or understanding
with, and has not given and will not give any commitment or assurance to, any person or entity as to how such proposed nominee, if elected as a director of the Corporation,
will act or vote on any issue or question (a “Voting Commitment”) or (2) any Voting Commitment that could limit or interfere with such proposed nominee’s ability to comply,
if elected as a director of the Corporation, with such proposed nominee’s fiduciary duties under applicable law, (B) is not, and will not become a party to, any agreement,
arrangement or understanding with any person or entity other than the Corporation with respect to any direct or indirect compensation or reimbursement for service as a director
and (C) if elected as a director of the Corporation, will comply with all applicable corporate governance, conflict of interest, confidentiality, stock ownership and trading and
other policies and guidelines of the Corporation applicable to directors and in effect during such person’s term in office as a director (and, if requested by any proposed
nominee, the Secretary of the Corporation shall provide to such proposed nominee all such policies and guidelines then in effect).

 
(vii) In addition to the requirements of this Section 2.5 with respect to any nomination proposed to be made at a meeting, each Proposing Person shall comply with all

applicable requirements of the Exchange Act with respect to any such nominations.
 
(viii) No proposed nominee shall be eligible for nomination as a director of the Corporation unless such proposed nominee and the Nominating Person seeking to place

such proposed nominee’s name in nomination have complied with this Section 2.5, as applicable. The presiding officer at the meeting shall, if the facts warrant, determine that a
nomination was not properly made in accordance with this Section 2.5, and if he or she should so determine, he or she shall so declare such determination to the meeting, the
defective nomination shall be disregarded and any ballots cast for the proposed nominee in question (but in the case of any form of ballot listing other qualified nominees, only
the ballots case for the nominee in question) shall be void and of no force or effect.
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2.6 NOTICE OF STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETINGS.
 
Unless otherwise provided by law, the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, the notice of any meeting of stockholders shall be sent or otherwise given in accordance

with either Section 2.7 or Section 8.1 of these bylaws not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vote at
such meeting. The notice shall specify the place, if any, date and hour of the meeting, the means of remote communication, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may
be deemed to be present in person and vote at such meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called.

 
2.7 MANNER OF GIVING NOTICE; AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICE.
 
Notice of any meeting of stockholders shall be deemed given:
 

(i) if mailed, when deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, directed to the stockholder at his or her address as it appears on the Corporation’s records; or
 
(ii) if electronically transmitted as provided in Section 8.1 of these bylaws.
 

An affidavit of the secretary or an assistant secretary of the Corporation or of the transfer agent or any other agent of the Corporation that the notice has been given by mail
or by a form of electronic transmission, as applicable, shall, in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein.

 
2.8 QUORUM.
 
Unless otherwise provided by law, the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, the holders of a majority in voting power of the stock issued and outstanding and entitled

to vote, present in person, or by remote communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings of the
stockholders. If, however, a quorum is not present or represented at any meeting of the stockholders, then either (i) the chairperson of the meeting or (ii) a majority in voting
power of the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, present in person, or by remote communication, if applicable, or represented by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the
meeting from time to time in the manner provided in Section 2.9 of these bylaws until a quorum is present or represented. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is
present or represented, any business may be transacted that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally noticed.
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2.9 ADJOURNED MEETING; NOTICE.
 
When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, unless these bylaws otherwise require, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting if the time, place, if any,

thereof, and the means of remote communications, if any, by which stockholders and proxy holders may be deemed to be present in person and vote at such adjourned meeting
are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the adjourned meeting, the Corporation may transact any business which might have been transacted at the
original meeting. If the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned
meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting.

 
2.10 CONDUCT OF BUSINESS.
 
The chairperson of any meeting of stockholders shall determine the order of business and the procedure at the meeting, including such regulation of the manner of voting

and the conduct of business.
 
2.11 VOTING.
 
The stockholders entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.13 of these bylaws, subject to

Section 217 (relating to voting rights of fiduciaries, pledgors and joint owners of stock) and Section 218 (relating to voting trusts and other voting agreements) of the DGCL.
 
Except as may be otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, each stockholder shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each share of capital stock

held by such stockholder.
 
At all duly called or convened meetings of stockholders, at which a quorum is present, for the election of directors, a plurality of the votes cast shall be sufficient to elect a

director. Except as otherwise provided by the certificate of incorporation, these bylaws, the rules or regulations of any stock exchange applicable to the Corporation, or
applicable law or pursuant to any regulation applicable to the Corporation or its securities, all other elections and questions presented to the stockholders at a duly called or
convened meeting, at which a quorum is present, shall be decided by the majority of the votes cast affirmatively or negatively (excluding abstentions and broker non-votes) and
shall be valid and binding upon the Corporation.

 
2.12 STOCKHOLDER ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT WITHOUT A MEETING.
 
Subject to the rights of the holders of the shares of any series of Preferred Stock or any other class of stock or series thereof having a preference over the Common Stock as

to dividends or upon liquidation, any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the Corporation must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting
of stockholders of the Corporation and may not be effected by any consent in writing by such stockholders.

 
2.13 RECORD DATE FOR STOCKHOLDER NOTICE; VOTING; GIVING CONSENTS.
 
In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment thereof, or entitled to

receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock or
for the purpose of any other lawful action, the Board may fix, in advance, a record date, which record date shall not precede the date on which the resolution fixing the record
date is adopted and which shall not be more than sixty (60) nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to any other such
action.
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If the Board does not so fix a record date:
 

(i) The record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding
the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held.

 
(ii) The record date for determining stockholders for any other purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the Board adopts the resolution relating

thereto.
 

A determination of stockholders of record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however,
that the Board may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

 
2.14 PROXIES.
 
Each stockholder entitled to vote at a meeting of stockholders may authorize another person or persons to act for such stockholder by proxy authorized by an instrument in

writing or by a transmission permitted by law filed in accordance with the procedure established for the meeting, but no such proxy shall be voted or acted upon after three
(3) years from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period. The revocability of a proxy that states on its face that it is irrevocable shall be governed by the provisions
of Section 212 of the DGCL. A proxy may be in the form of a telegram, cablegram or other means of electronic transmission which sets forth or is submitted with information
from which it can be determined that the telegram, cablegram or other means of electronic transmission was authorized by the stockholder.

 
2.15 LIST OF STOCKHOLDERS ENTITLED TO VOTE.
 
The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of the Corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten (10) days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the

stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of each
stockholder. The Corporation shall not be required to include electronic mail addresses or other electronic contact information on such list. Such list shall be open to the
examination of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the meeting for a period of at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting: (i) on a reasonably accessible electronic
network, provided that the information required to gain access to such list is provided with the notice of the meeting, or (ii) during ordinary business hours, at the Corporation’s
principal executive office. In the event that the Corporation determines to make the list available on an electronic network, the Corporation may take reasonable steps to ensure
that such information is available only to stockholders of the Corporation. If the meeting is to be held at a place, then the list shall be produced and kept at the time and place of
the meeting during the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder who is present. If the meeting is to be held solely by means of remote communication, then
the list shall also be open to the examination of any stockholder during the whole time of the meeting on a reasonably accessible electronic network, and the information
required to access such list shall be provided with the notice of the meeting. Such list shall presumptively determine the identity of the stockholders entitled to vote at the
meeting and the number of shares held by each of them.
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2.16 INSPECTORS OF ELECTION.
 
Before any meeting of stockholders, the Board shall appoint an inspector or inspectors of election to act at the meeting or its adjournment and make a written report thereof.

The number of inspectors shall be either one (1) or three (3). If any person appointed as inspector fails to appear or fails or refuses to act, then the chairperson of the meeting
may, and upon the request of any stockholder or a stockholder’s proxy shall, appoint a person to fill that vacancy.

 
Such inspectors shall:
 

(i) determine the number of shares outstanding and the voting power of each, the number of shares represented at the meeting, the existence of a quorum, and the
authenticity, validity, and effect of proxies;

 
(ii) receive votes or ballots;
 
(iii) hear and determine all challenges and questions in any way arising in connection with the right to vote;
 
(iv) count and tabulate all votes;
 
(v) determine when the polls shall close;
 
(vi) determine the result; and
 
(vii) do any other acts that may be proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness to all stockholders.
 

The inspectors of election shall perform their duties impartially, in good faith, to the best of their ability and as expeditiously as is practical. If there are three (3) inspectors
of election, the decision, act or certificate of a majority is effective in all respects as the decision, act or certificate of all. Any report or certificate made by the inspectors of
election is prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein.
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ARTICLE III - DIRECTORS

 
3.1 POWERS.
 
Subject to the provisions of the DGCL and any limitations in the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws relating to action required to be approved by the stockholders

or by the outstanding shares, the business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board.
 
3.2 NUMBER OF DIRECTORS.
 
The authorized number of directors shall be determined from time to time by resolution of the Board, provided the Board shall consist of at least one (1) member. No

reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director before that director’s term of office expires.
 
3.3 ELECTION, QUALIFICATION AND TERM OF OFFICE OF DIRECTORS.
 
Except as provided in Section 3.4 of these bylaws, each director, including a director elected to fill a vacancy, shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which

elected and until such director’s successor is elected and qualified or until such director’s earlier death, resignation or removal. Directors need not be stockholders unless so
required by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws. The certificate of incorporation or these bylaws may prescribe other qualifications for directors.

 
If so provided in the certificate of incorporation, the directors of the Corporation shall be divided into three (3) classes.
 
3.4 RESIGNATION AND VACANCIES.
 
Any director may resign at any time upon notice given in writing or by electronic transmission to the Corporation. When one or more directors so resigns and the

resignation is effective at a future date, a majority of the directors then in office, including those who have so resigned, shall have power to fill such vacancy or vacancies, the
vote thereon to take effect when such resignation or resignations shall become effective, and each director so chosen shall hold office as provided in this section in the filling of
other vacancies.

 
Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, vacancies and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized

number of directors shall, unless the Board determines by resolution that any such vacancies or newly created directorships shall be filled by stockholders, be filled only by a
majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director. Any director elected in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold
office for the remainder of the full term of the director for which the vacancy was created or occurred and until such director’s successor shall have been elected and qualified.
A vacancy in the Board shall be deemed to exist under these bylaws in the case of the death, removal or resignation of any director.
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3.5 PLACE OF MEETINGS; MEETINGS BY TELEPHONE.
 
The Board may hold meetings, both regular and special, either within or outside the State of Delaware.
 
Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, members of the Board, or any committee designated by the Board, may participate in a

meeting of the Board, or any committee, by means of conference telephone or other communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can
hear each other, and such participation in a meeting pursuant to this bylaw shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

 
3.6 REGULAR MEETINGS.
 
Regular meetings of the Board may be held without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be determined by the Board.
 
3.7 SPECIAL MEETINGS; NOTICE.
 
Special meetings of the Board for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the Board, the chief executive officer, the president, the secretary or a majority of

the authorized number of directors. Notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be:
 

(i) delivered personally by hand, by courier or by telephone;
 
(ii) sent by United States first-class mail, postage prepaid;
 
(iii) sent by facsimile; or
 
(iv) sent by electronic mail,
 

directed to each director at that director’s address, telephone number, facsimile number or electronic mail address, as the case may be, as shown on the Corporation’s records.
 

If the notice is (i) delivered personally by hand, by courier or by telephone, (ii) sent by facsimile or (iii) sent by electronic mail, it shall be delivered or sent at least twenty-
four (24) hours before the time of the holding of the meeting. If the notice is sent by U.S. mail, it shall be deposited in the U.S. mail at least four (4) days before the time of the
holding of the meeting. Any oral notice may be communicated to the director. The notice need not specify the place of the meeting (if the meeting is to be held at the
Corporation’s principal executive office) nor the purpose of the meeting.

 
3.8 QUORUM.
 
At all meetings of the Board, a majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The vote of a majority of the

directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute, the certificate of
incorporation or these bylaws. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of the Board, then the directors present thereat may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without
notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum is present.
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A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a

majority of the required quorum for that meeting.
 
3.9 BOARD ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT WITHOUT A MEETING.
 
Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board, or of any committee

thereof, may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing or by electronic transmission and the writing
or writings or electronic transmission or transmissions are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board or committee. Such filing shall be in paper form if the minutes are
maintained in paper form and shall be in electronic form if the minutes are maintained in electronic form.

 
3.10 FEES AND COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS.
 
Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, the Board shall have the authority to fix the compensation of directors.
 
3.11 REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS.
 
Except as otherwise provided by the DGCL, the Board of Directors or any individual director may be removed from office only for cause at a meeting of stockholders

called for that purpose, by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least sixty six and two thirds percent (66-2/3%) of the voting power of all the then outstanding shares of
voting stock of the Corporation entitled to vote at an election of directors, voting together as a single class.

 
No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director prior to the expiration of such director’s term of office.
 

ARTICLE IV - COMMITTEES
 

4.1 COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS.
 
The Board may designate one (1) or more committees, each committee to consist of one (1) or more of the directors of the Corporation. The Board may designate one (1) or

more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. In the absence or disqualification
of a member of a committee, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not such member or members constitute a
quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the Board to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member. Any such committee, to the extent
provided in the resolution of the Board or in these bylaws, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the Board in the management of the business and affairs
of the Corporation, and may authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all papers that may require it; but no such committee shall have the power or authority to
(i) approve or adopt, or recommend to the stockholders, any action or matter expressly required by the DGCL to be submitted to stockholders for approval, or (ii) adopt, amend
or repeal any bylaw of the Corporation.
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4.2 COMMITTEE MINUTES.
 
Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its meetings and report the same to the Board when required.
  
4.3 MEETINGS AND ACTION OF COMMITTEES.
 
Meetings and actions of committees shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of:
 

(i) Section 3.5 (place of meetings and meetings by telephone);
 
(ii) Section 3.6 (regular meetings);
 
(iii) Section 3.7 (special meetings and notice);
 
(iv) Section 3.8 (quorum);
 
(v) Section 7.12 (waiver of notice); and
 
(vi) Section 3.9 (action without a meeting),
 

with such changes in the context of those bylaws as are necessary to substitute the committee and its members for the Board and its members. However:
 

(i) the time of regular meetings of committees may be determined either by resolution of the Board or by resolution of the committee;
 
(ii) special meetings of committees may also be called by resolution of the Board; and
 
(iii) notice of special meetings of committees shall also be given to all alternate members, who shall have the right to attend all meetings of the committee. The Board

may adopt rules for the government of any committee not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws.
 

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS
 

5.1 OFFICERS.
 
The officers of the Corporation shall be a president and a secretary. The Corporation may also have, at the discretion of the Board, a chairperson of the Board, a vice

chairperson of the Board, a chief executive officer, a chief financial officer or treasurer, one (1) or more vice presidents, one (1) or more assistant vice presidents, one (1) or
more assistant treasurers, one (1) or more assistant secretaries, and any such other officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws. Any number
of offices may be held by the same person.
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5.2 APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS.
 
The Board shall appoint the officers of the Corporation, except such officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.3 of these bylaws, subject

to the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment.
 
5.3 SUBORDINATE OFFICERS.
 
The Board may appoint, or empower the chief executive officer or, in the absence of a chief executive officer, the president, to appoint, such other officers and agents as the

business of the Corporation may require. Each of such officers and agents shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are provided in these
bylaws or as the Board may from time to time determine.

 
5.4 REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION OF OFFICERS.
 
Subject to the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by an affirmative vote of the

majority of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board or, except in the case of an officer chosen by the Board, by any officer upon whom such power of removal
may be conferred by the Board.

 
Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Corporation. Any resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of that notice or at any later time

specified in that notice. Unless otherwise specified in the notice of resignation, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Any resignation is
without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the Corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party.

 
5.5 VACANCIES IN OFFICES.
 
Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Corporation shall be filled by the Board or as provided in Section 5.2.
 
5.6 REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER CORPORATIONS.
 
The chairperson of the Board, the president, any vice president, the treasurer, the secretary or assistant secretary of the Corporation, or any other person authorized by the

Board or the president or a vice president, is authorized to vote, represent and exercise on behalf of the Corporation all rights incident to any and all shares of any other
corporation or corporations standing in the name of the Corporation. The authority granted herein may be exercised either by such person directly or by any other person
authorized to do so by proxy or power of attorney duly executed by such person having the authority.
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5.7 AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF OFFICERS.
 
All officers of the Corporation shall respectively have such authority and perform such duties in the management of the business of the Corporation as may be designated

from time to time by the Board or the stockholders and, to the extent not so provided, as generally pertain to their respective offices, subject to the control of the Board.
 

ARTICLE VI - RECORDS AND REPORTS
 

6.1 MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS.
 
The Corporation shall, either at its principal executive office or at such place or places as designated by the Board, keep a record of its stockholders listing their names and

addresses and the number and class of shares held by each stockholder, a copy of these bylaws as amended to date, accounting books and other records.
 
Any stockholder of record, in person or by attorney or other agent, shall, upon written demand under oath stating the purpose thereof, have the right during the usual hours

for business to inspect for any proper purpose the Corporation’s stock ledger, a list of its stockholders, and its other books and records and to make copies or extracts therefrom.
A proper purpose shall mean a purpose reasonably related to such person’s interest as a stockholder. In every instance where an attorney or other agent is the person who seeks
the right to inspection, the demand under oath shall be accompanied by a power of attorney or such other writing that authorizes the attorney or other agent so to act on behalf
of the stockholder. The demand under oath shall be directed to the Corporation at its registered office in Delaware or at its principal executive office.

 
6.2 INSPECTION BY DIRECTORS.
 
Any director shall have the right to examine the Corporation’s stock ledger, a list of its stockholders, and its other books and records for a purpose reasonably related to his

or her position as a director. The Court of Chancery is hereby vested with the exclusive jurisdiction to determine whether a director is entitled to the inspection sought. The
Court may summarily order the Corporation to permit the director to inspect any and all books and records, the stock ledger, and the stock list and to make copies or extracts
therefrom. The Court may, in its discretion, prescribe any limitations or conditions with reference to the inspection, or award such other and further relief as the Court may
deem just and proper.

 
ARTICLE VII - GENERAL MATTERS

 
7.1 EXECUTION OF CORPORATE CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS.
 
The Board, except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, may authorize any officer or officers, or agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in

the name of and on behalf of the Corporation; such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized or ratified by the Board or within the agency
power of an officer, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it
liable for any purpose or for any amount.
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7.2 STOCK CERTIFICATES; PARTLY PAID SHARES.
 
The shares of the Corporation shall be represented by certificates or shall be uncertificated. Certificates for the shares of stock, if any, shall be in such form as is consistent

with the certificate of incorporation and applicable law. Every holder of stock represented by a certificate shall be entitled to have a certificate signed by, or in the name of the
Corporation by the chairperson or vice-chairperson of the Board, or the president or vice-president, and by the treasurer or an assistant treasurer, or the secretary or an assistant
secretary of the Corporation representing the number of shares registered in certificate form. Any or all of the signatures on the certificate may be a facsimile. In case any
officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate has ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before
such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the Corporation with the same effect as if he or she were such officer, transfer agent or registrar at the date of issue.

 
The Corporation may issue the whole or any part of its shares as partly paid and subject to call for the remainder of the consideration to be paid therefor. Upon the face or

back of each stock certificate issued to represent any such partly paid shares, upon the books and records of the Corporation in the case of uncertificated partly paid shares, the
total amount of the consideration to be paid therefor and the amount paid thereon shall be stated. Upon the declaration of any dividend on fully paid shares, the Corporation
shall declare a dividend upon partly paid shares of the same class, but only upon the basis of the percentage of the consideration actually paid thereon.

 
7.3 SPECIAL DESIGNATION ON CERTIFICATES.
 
If the Corporation is authorized to issue more than one class of stock or more than one series of any class, then the powers, the designations, the preferences and the

relative, participating, optional or other special rights of each class of stock or series thereof and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or rights
shall be set forth in full or summarized on the face or back of the certificate that the Corporation shall issue to represent such class or series of stock; provided, however, that,
except as otherwise provided in Section 202 of the DGCL, in lieu of the foregoing requirements, there may be set forth on the face or back of the certificate that the Corporation
shall issue to represent such class or series of stock a statement that the Corporation will furnish without charge to each stockholder who so requests the powers, the
designations, the preferences and the relative, participating, optional or other special rights of each class of stock or series thereof and the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions of such preferences and/or rights.

 
7.4 LOST CERTIFICATES.
 
Except as provided in this Section 7.4, no new certificates for shares shall be issued to replace a previously issued certificate unless the latter is surrendered to the

Corporation and cancelled at the same time. The Corporation may issue a new certificate of stock or uncertificated shares in the place of any certificate theretofore issued by it,
alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed, and the Corporation may require the owner of the lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, or such owner’s legal representative, to give
the Corporation a bond sufficient to indemnify it against any claim that may be made against it on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of any such certificate or the
issuance of such new certificate or uncertificated shares.
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7.5 CONSTRUCTION; DEFINITIONS.
 
Unless the context requires otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction and definitions in the DGCL shall govern the construction of these bylaws. Without

limiting the generality of this provision, the singular number includes the plural, the plural number includes the singular, and the term “person” includes both a corporation and
a natural person.

 
7.6 DIVIDENDS.
 
The Board, subject to any restrictions contained in either (i) the DGCL or (ii) the certificate of incorporation, may declare and pay dividends upon the shares of its capital

stock. Dividends may be paid in cash, in property or in shares of the Corporation’s capital stock.
 
The Board may set apart out of any of the funds of the Corporation available for dividends a reserve or reserves for any proper purpose and may abolish any such reserve.

Such purposes shall include but not be limited to equalizing dividends, repairing or maintaining any property of the Corporation, and meeting contingencies.
 
7.7 FISCAL YEAR
 
The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board and may be changed by the Board.
 
7.8 SEAL.
 
The Corporation may adopt a corporate seal, which shall be adopted and which may be altered by the Board. The Corporation may use the corporate seal by causing it or a

facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or in any other manner reproduced.
 
7.9 TRANSFER OF STOCK.
 
Shares of the Corporation shall be transferable in the manner prescribed by law and in these bylaws. Shares of stock of the Corporation shall be transferred on the books of

the Corporation only by the holder of record thereof or by such holder’s attorney duly authorized in writing, upon surrender to the Corporation of the certificate or certificates
representing such shares endorsed by the appropriate person or persons (or by delivery of duly executed instructions with respect to uncertificated shares), with such evidence of
the authenticity of such endorsement or execution, transfer, authorization and other matters as the Corporation may reasonably require, and accompanied by all necessary stock
transfer stamps. No transfer of stock shall be valid as against the Corporation for any purpose until it shall have been entered in the stock records of the Corporation by an entry
showing the names of the persons from and to whom it was transferred.

 

19



 

 
7.10 STOCK TRANSFER AGREEMENTS.
 
The Corporation shall have power to enter into and perform any agreement with any number of stockholders of any one or more classes of stock of the Corporation to

restrict the transfer of shares of stock of the Corporation of any one or more classes owned by such stockholders in any manner not prohibited by the DGCL.
 
7.11 REGISTERED STOCKHOLDERS.
 
The Corporation:
 

(i) shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive dividends and to vote as such owner;
 
(ii) shall be entitled to hold liable for calls and assessments the person registered on its books as the owner of shares; and
 
(iii) shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share or shares on the part of another person, whether or not it shall have express

or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of Delaware.
 

7.12 WAIVER OF NOTICE.
 
Whenever notice is required to be given under any provision of the DGCL, the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, a written waiver, signed by the person entitled to

notice, or a waiver by electronic transmission by the person entitled to notice, whether before or after the time of the event for which notice is to be given, shall be deemed
equivalent to notice. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the person attends a meeting for the express purpose of
objecting at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor
the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the stockholders need be specified in any written waiver of notice or any waiver by electronic transmission unless so required
by the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws.

 
ARTICLE VIII - NOTICE BY ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION

 
8.1 NOTICE BY ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION.
 
Without limiting the manner by which notice otherwise may be given effectively to stockholders pursuant to the DGCL, the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws, any

notice to stockholders given by the Corporation under any provision of the DGCL, the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws shall be effective if given by a form of
electronic transmission consented to by the stockholder to whom the notice is given. Any such consent shall be revocable by the stockholder by written notice to the
Corporation. Any such consent shall be deemed revoked if:
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(i) the Corporation is unable to deliver by electronic transmission two (2) consecutive notices given by the Corporation in accordance with such consent; and
 
(ii) such inability becomes known to the secretary or an assistant secretary of the Corporation or to the transfer agent, or other person responsible for the giving of

notice.
 

However, the inadvertent failure to treat such inability as a revocation shall not invalidate any meeting or other action.
 
Any notice given pursuant to the preceding paragraph shall be deemed given:
 

(i) if by facsimile telecommunication, when directed to a number at which the stockholder has consented to receive notice;
 
(ii) if by electronic mail, when directed to an electronic mail address at which the stockholder has consented to receive notice;
 
(iii) if by a posting on an electronic network together with separate notice to the stockholder of such specific posting, upon the later of (A) such posting and (B) the

giving of such separate notice; and
 
(iv) if by any other form of electronic transmission, when directed to the stockholder.
 

An affidavit of the secretary or an assistant secretary or of the transfer agent or other agent of the Corporation that the notice has been given by a form of electronic
transmission shall, in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein.

 
8.2 DEFINITION OF ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION.
 
An “electronic transmission” means any form of communication, not directly involving the physical transmission of paper, that creates a record that may be retained,

retrieved and reviewed by a recipient thereof, and that may be directly reproduced in paper form by such a recipient through an automated process.
 

ARTICLE IX - INDEMNIFICATION
 

9.1 INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS.
 
The Corporation shall indemnify and hold harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL as it presently exists or may hereafter be amended, any director or officer

of the Corporation who was or is made or is threatened to be made a party or is otherwise involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative (a “Proceeding”) by reason of the fact that he or she, or a person for whom he or she is the legal representative, is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or
is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust, enterprise or non-profit
entity, including service with respect to employee benefit plans, against all liability and loss suffered and expenses (including attorneys’ fees) reasonably incurred by such
person in connection with any such Proceeding. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, except as otherwise provided in Section 9.4, the Corporation shall be required to
indemnify a person in connection with a Proceeding initiated by such person only if the Proceeding was authorized in the specific case by the Board.
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9.2 INDEMNIFICATION OF OTHERS.
 
The Corporation shall have the power to indemnify and hold harmless, to the extent permitted by applicable law as it presently exists or may hereafter be amended, any

employee or agent of the Corporation who was or is made or is threatened to be made a party or is otherwise involved in any Proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she, or a
person for whom he or she is the legal representative, is or was an employee or agent of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director,
officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust, enterprise or non-profit entity, including service with respect to employee benefit plans,
against all liability and loss suffered and expenses reasonably incurred by such person in connection with any such Proceeding.

 
9.3 PREPAYMENT OF EXPENSES.
 
The Corporation shall to the fullest extent not prohibited by applicable law pay the expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by any officer or director of the

Corporation, and may pay the expenses incurred by any employee or agent of the Corporation, in defending any Proceeding in advance of its final
disposition; provided, however, that, to the extent required by law, such payment of expenses in advance of the final disposition of the Proceeding shall be made only upon
receipt of an undertaking by the person to repay all amounts advanced if it should be ultimately determined that the person is not entitled to be indemnified under this Article IX
or otherwise.

 
9.4 DETERMINATION; CLAIM.
 
If a claim for indemnification (following the final disposition of such Proceeding) or advancement of expenses under this Article IX is not paid in full within sixty (60) days

after a written claim therefor has been received by the Corporation the claimant may file suit to recover the unpaid amount of such claim and, if successful in whole or in part,
shall be entitled to be paid the expense of prosecuting such claim to the fullest extent permitted by law. In any such action the Corporation shall have the burden of proving that
the claimant was not entitled to the requested indemnification or payment of expenses under applicable law.

 
9.5 NON-EXCLUSIVITY OF RIGHTS.
 
The rights conferred on any person by this Article IX shall not be exclusive of any other rights which such person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute,

provision of the certificate of incorporation, these bylaws, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.
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9.6 INSURANCE.
 
The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving

at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust enterprise or non-profit entity against any
liability asserted against him or her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the
power to indemnify him or her against such liability under the provisions of the DGCL.

 
9.7 OTHER INDEMNIFICATION.
 
The Corporation’s obligation, if any, to indemnify or advance expenses to any person who was or is serving at its request as a director, officer, employee or agent of

another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, enterprise or non-profit entity shall be reduced by any amount such person may collect as indemnification or advancement
of expenses from such other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, enterprise or non-profit enterprise.

 
9.8 CONTINUATION OF INDEMNIFICATION.
 
The rights to indemnification and to prepayment of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, this Article IX shall continue notwithstanding that the person has ceased

to be a director or officer of the Corporation and shall inure to the benefit of the estate, heirs, executors, administrators, legatees and distributees of such person.
 
9.9 AMENDMENT OR REPEAL.
 
The provisions of this Article IX shall constitute a contract between the Corporation, on the one hand, and, on the other hand, each individual who serves or has served as a

director or officer of the Corporation (whether before or after the adoption of these bylaws), in consideration of such person’s performance of such services, and pursuant to this
Article IX the Corporation intends to be legally bound to each such current or former director or officer of the Corporation. With respect to current and former directors and
officers of the Corporation, the rights conferred under this Article IX are present contractual rights and such rights are fully vested, and shall be deemed to have vested fully,
immediately upon adoption of theses bylaws. With respect to any directors or officers of the Corporation who commence service following adoption of these bylaws, the rights
conferred under this provision shall be present contractual rights and such rights shall fully vest, and be deemed to have vested fully, immediately upon such director or officer
commencing service as a director or officer of the Corporation. Any repeal or modification of the foregoing provisions of this Article IX shall not adversely affect any right or
protection (i) hereunder of any person in respect of any act or omission occurring prior to the time of such repeal or modification or (ii) under any agreement providing for
indemnification or advancement of expenses to an officer or director of the Corporation in effect prior to the time of such repeal or modification.

 
ARTICLE X - AMENDMENTS

 
Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 9.9 of these bylaws or the provisions of the certificate of incorporation, the Board is expressly empowered to adopt, amend or

repeal the bylaws of the Corporation. Any adoption, amendment or repeal of the bylaws of the Corporation by the Board shall require the approval of a majority of the
authorized number of directors. The stockholders also shall have power to adopt, amend or repeal the bylaws of the Corporation; provided, however, that, in addition to any vote
of the holders of any class or series of stock of the Corporation required by law or by the certificate of incorporation, such action by stockholders shall require the affirmative
vote of the holders of at least sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66-2/3%) of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of the capital stock of the Corporation entitled
to vote at an election of directors.
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EXHIBIT 31.1
 

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes - Oxley Act of 2002
 

I, Ann Marie Sastry, Ph.D., certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Amesite Inc.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of

the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results

of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 
 (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

 
 (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 
 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
 (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect

the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
 
Date: November 16, 2020 By: /s/ Ann Marie Sastry, Ph.D.
 Name: Ann Marie Sastry, Ph.D.
 Title: Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
 
 



EXHIBIT 32.1
 

CERTIFICATIONS
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

(Subsections (A) and (B) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code)
 

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), I, Ann Marie Sastry,
Ph.D., Chief Executive Officer of Amesite Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby certify, to my knowledge, that:

 
The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements of section

13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
 
Date: November 16, 2020 By: /s/ Ann Marie Sastry, Ph.D.
 Name: Ann Marie Sastry
 Title: Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
 


